1978

Lola H. Mitchell v. Gary A. Mitchell : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an extension for an action of divorce. The wife, appellant herein, received a divorce in lower court on the 18th day of December, 1975, which was continued until the 22nd day of April, 1976, and the 28th day of April, 1976, wherein the Court granted a Decree of Divorce to both parties on the 6th day of January, 1976, and on the 10th day of May, 1976, filed an Amended Decree of Divorce. After that time the defendant filed an appeal in the Supreme Court, Case No. 14738, which was heard by the Supreme Court and decided on the 8th day of June, 1977, Justice Wilkins writing for the Court. During the period of time from the granting of the divorce until the ruling of the Supreme Court, the defendant failed to make the payments on the mortgage on real property which had been awarded to the plaintiff. Relief and in-

junctive relief was sought from the lower court and from the Supreme Court without success and the property was sold on April 1, 1977. Defendant's debts were paid and plaintiff was left without assets. After that a hearing was held before Judge Christoffersen who found the defendant in contempt of court for failure to protect the interest of the plaintiff. At a hearing before Judge J. Duffy Palmer, Judge Palmer heard evidence with respect to the disposition of the property and without benefit of the file (said file not having been available to him) he made a bench ruling. After that time, the Order on Order to Show Cause was filed by defendant's attorney and said Order on Order to Show Cause was docketed but was then hidden from sight in the Clerk's Office and at a Motion for Rehearing, having been denied, plaintiff sought further relief from the Order before Judge Tibbs, Judge Palmer having disqualified himself. Plaintiff, therefore, having appeared before Judge Gould, Judge Christoffersen, the Judges of the Supreme Court, Judge Christoffersen, Judge Palmer, Judge John F. Wahlquist, Judge Tibbs, continues to seek relief. For Judge Tibbs, on the 29th day of March, 1978, ruled that he was without jurisdiction since Judge Palmer had ruled on February 14, 1978, that he was without jurisdiction to modify the Order on Order to Show Cause rendered by him on August 31, 1977.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

After the Supreme Court decision Judge Christoffersen held a hearing and found the Defendant-Respondent in contempt of court, permitted the Plaintiff-Appellant to withdraw \$15,000.00 of funds and disqualified himself. Judge Palmer, on a hearing on Order to Show Cause, without benefit of the file, distributed the assets of the parties requiring the Plaintiff-Appellant to pay the debts of the Defendant-Respondent without any concomitant distribution of assets to the Plaintiff-Appellant. Judge Palmer disqualified himself after a Motion for a New Hearing. Judge Tibbs refused to do equity in that he found that there was no change of circumstances between the August hearing and the March hearing.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Lola Hope Mitchell, the Appellant herein, seeks relief as follows:

1. Reversal of the Trial Court's Order with respect to distribution of assets.
2. Disbursement of assets by this Court since no other Court seems capable of (or disposed to) distributing the assets.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Plaintiff-Appellant and the Defendant-Respondent

were residents of the jurisdiction and were intermarried on February 14, 1969, in Weber County, Utah. The Trial Court in the first instance found values in the amount of \$107,437.00, of which a substantial amount was the real property in Uintah (the home of the parties). During the course of a previous appeal, that home was sold at a foreclosure of Trust Deed Note for the value of \$81,200.00. The Decree of Divorce had provided that the Defendant-Respondent should pay the \$51,000.00 Trust Deed Note and should also pay other mortgages against said property. As a result of the foreclosure of Trust Deed Note, the \$51,000.00 amount was paid (when finally computed it amounted to \$67,031.95, plus \$4,495.00 paid to Dale T. Browning on another mortgage.) Defendant-Respondent ended up with real property of the value of \$336,000.00 (four 4-plexes at \$84,000.00 each) (T 25, Line 13) less a mortgage in the amount of \$153,000.00, together with his Marilyn Drive house, his automobile, camper and business. Plaintiff-Appellant received a lien against the sixteen (16) units in the amount of \$20,000.00 and \$15,000.00 from the sale of the Uintah property. In the distribution of the assets as envisioned by Judge Christoffersen, each was to receive one-half. In the final distribution of assets, Plaintiff-Appellant paid

Defendant-Respondent's debts in the sum of approximately \$80,000.00, received \$15,000.00 and an unpaid equity of \$20,000.00. Defendant-Respondent received all of the rest of the property.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN NOT FINDING THAT JUDGE PALMER COULD NOT DO EQUITY IN VIEW OF THE MISSING PAGES.

The Defendant-Respondent, Gary A. Mitchell, was found in contempt of court by Judge Christoffersen for his failure to protect the assets of the Plaintiff-Appellant. After that time Judge Palmer, despite the fact that he did not have the file, made a ruling which granted equity to the Defendant-Respondent whose net effect was to require the Plaintiff-Appellant to pay the debts of the Defendant-Respondent. Judge Palmer, at a subsequent hearing, testified that he did not have the file in front of him (see T pages 27-29) wherein the Judge, responding to a question, "At the time of the hearing in August were there parts of the file that were missing" Answer: "Well, in fact, the entire file was missing with the exception of some few papers." Despite Judge Palmer's response in that regard and despite having framed the misrepresentation to the Court, Judge Tibbs failed to

find that Judge Palmer's ruling could not have done equity to the Plaintiff Appellant herein. The file reflects that, in fact, the Defendant-Respondent was in contempt of court. The file reflects further that the Plaintiff-Appellant paid all of the debts of the parties with the exception of the mortgage on the sixteen (16) units. The file further reflects that each Judge, Judge Palmer and Judge Tibbs, was aware of the fact that this was an inequitable position with respect to the distribution of assets. Judge Tibbs, in spite of the definitive statement on the part of Judge Palmer, did not do equity to the Plaintiff-Appellant.

One is reminded of the words of St. Luke, Chapter 18, Verses 1 through 7, "And He spake a parable unto them to this end, that men ought always to pray, and not to faint; Saying, There was in a city a judge, which feared not God, neither regarded man: And there was a widow in that city; and she came unto him, saying, Avenge me of mine adversary. And he would not for a while: but afterward he said within himself, Though I fear not God, nor regard man; Yet because this widow troubleth me, I will avenge her, lest by her continual coming she weary me. And the Lord said, Hear what the unjust judge saith. And shall not God avenge his own elect, which cry day and night unto him, though he bear long with them?" Must the Plaintiff-Appellant wait for that long sought

day of the Lord's coming to get equity? Neither Judge Gould, Judge Christoffersen, the Supreme Court, Judge Christoffersen, Judge Wahlquist, Judge Palmer, nor Judge Tibbs has ever given her equity with respect to the distribution of the property. When, oh when, shall such equity occur?

POINT II

SINCE NO TRIAL COURT JUDGE SEEMS WILLING TO GIVE EQUITY THIS COURT SHOULD REVIEW THE FILE (IT IS ASSUMED THAT ALL OF IT WILL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE COURT) AND ALL OF THE TRANSCRIPTS AND DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT THIS PLAINTIFF-APPELLANT HAS RECEIVED HER FAIR SHARE OF THE ASSETS OF THE PARTIES.

At the time of the hearing before Judge Palmer on the 31st day of August, 1977, the Court, at page 112, line 22, said, "I wish I knew what was in Judge Christoffersen's mind when he made the order. I can't tell you that." The Plaintiff-Appellant here does not know what is in the mind of any Judge and is unable to see the equity of the rulings where the Defendant-Respondent received a disparate amount of property, which when translated into money approximates \$80,000.00 more than she received, she being required to pay his debts which he was obligated under the original Amended Decree to pay. Where the Defendant-Respondent

did not have clean hands, how could the Court determine that he should receive an inordinate amount of the assets? It is a well established maximum of the law that he who seeks equity must do equity. Glen vs. Player, 326 P2d, 717 7 U.2d, 428; and Carbon Canal Co. vs. Sanpete Water Users Assn., 425 P2d 405, 19 U.2d 6; and Pack vs. Jamison, 364 P2d 1; and 2 U. 2d, 241. That Plaintiff-Appellant should receive not less than one-half of the total value of the sixteen (16) units located in Layton, Utah.

The Court in Graham vs. Street, 27 P2d, 456, 2 U. 2d, 14, and Warren vs. Dixon Ranch Co., 260 P2d, 741; 122 Utah 416, has specifically said that equity is the function of the courts and that remedies not otherwise achievable should be achieved in equity and that he who is in a relationship of trust and confidence may not profit from his own wrong doing. (Since the time of the filing of this appeal, Defendant-Respondent has taken the children for visitation and has refused to return them and has now secreted himself from the Court to the extent that an indictment for kidnapping has been returned against him out of the State of Texas.)

In Watson vs. Watson, Utah, 561 P2d 1072. this Court has said that where it appears that the Court failed to correctly apply principles of law or equity, that evidence clearly preponderates against finding, or

the judgment has so failed to do equity that it manifests a clear abuse of discretion the Supreme Court on review will take appropriate corrective action in interest of justice.