1979

# Lola H. Mitchell v. Gary A. Mitchell : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

An action of divorce was filed by the Appellant and first heard by the Court on April 28, 1976, and resulted in the Lower Court granting a Decree of Divorce to both of the parties, which decree was issued by the Court on January 6, 1976.

As related by the Appellant in the Brief before the Court, the Appellant has caused hearings to be held by a number of lower court Judges and several of the Interum on Appeals to the Supreme Court of Utah.

The present Appeal before this Court is based upon a

denial by the Honorable Don V. Tibbs in ruling upon an Order to Show Cause, and that the Order to Show Cause in effect sought a modification of a decree of another lower District Court Judge, who having rendered a previous Judgment in the divorce matter before the Court, ruled that a Petition to Modify had been untimely filed in accordance with the Rules of Civil Procedure governing the rights of the parties in the District Court, and in addition, the Petition for the Order to Show Cause was denied for failure to state with particularity the grounds upon which relief was being sought. It was further decreed that the Court could only consider a modification of Judgment based on change of circumstances since the rendering of the verdict by the previous court, and that such change of circumstances was not shown.

#### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Respondent seeks upholding of the Judgment of the lower District Court for the previously rendered Judgment in this matter.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

Respondent cannot accept as factual the Statement of Facts set forth by the Appellant, in that there is no reference to the record except as to two specific statements set forth in the Statement of Facts; and as to those items attributed to a record by reference, the references referred to was an

opinion, not that of an expert, who testified as to the value of the 4-plexes alleging their value to be \$84,000.00 each, when the record shows that the witness was not a member of any qualified appraisal organization or group (T-22), has never done any veteran administration appraisals (T-23), examined only one unit of the four units (T-23), was asked only to give a rough estimate of the value, did not measure the square footage of the property premises (T-23).

The best testimony before the court is that of the Respondent who states the property was worth a maximum of \$60,000.00 per 4-plex, for a total of \$240,000.00 (T-32), and that the property is not marketable unless a cash buyer can be found, in that there is a first mortgage on the property, in addition thereto there is a second mortgage in the amount of \$31,000.00 at 18 percent interest, and the conversion of the property into a sale requires a cash position for any equity as well as the second mortgage (T-32), and that banks and loaning institutions have not been loaning on rental unit property for a number of years unless it is a single rental unit type of 4-plex where the purchaser would also be residing therein (T-32). The Respondent stated that the appraisal of the property was a sham appraisal, in that no appraiser can properly appraise property without examining the property and studying the method of construction, taking into consideration the quality of the construction of

the premises (T-33).

The Court found both of the parties at fault and granted both a Decree of Divorce and set a subsequent period for determination of the distribution of the marital estate (T-18). The Court awarded the Uintah properties originally to the Appellant and granted to the Respondent a Judgment lien of \$20,000.00. The Uintah property had a balloon payment that was past due in the amount of \$51,000.00, together with \$3,500.00 due on the lot to a second party (T-255). In addition there was a bank note due and owing in the amount of \$10,000.00 and a note to the bank for landscaping in the amount of \$3,000.00, all past due. (T-265) The Respondent testified that he had no way to refinance the Uintah property nor to make the payments on it (T-266), and that the four 4-plexes had income just approximately sufficient to make the mortgage installments due for the indebtedness on them (T-267), and, therefore, were of no income value as to the Respondent.

The Court awarded the Uintah home to the Appellant and ordered the Respondent to pay the total indebtedness against the home and in addition to pay child support of \$150.00 per child and alimony of \$200.00 a month (T-272), when the maximum income of the Respondent was \$12,000.00 a year (T-36), which resulted in the foreclosure and loss of the Uintah property.

An Order to Show Cause was brought before the Honorable



Calvin Gould alleging the wilful failure of the Respondent to comply with the Order of the Court (R-286).

The plight of the loan set forth in a letter from Walker Bank and Trust to the Respondent (R-294), and the Lower Court referred the matter back to the original hearing Judge to enforce its own Order if it deemed it was possible for the Respondent to so perform. The original hearing Judge ordered and decreed that the Respondent, while in violation of the Court Order, was not subject to punishment as the violation was not wilful (R-307), and the Court further found that the filing of a Supersedeas Bond by the Respondent could not constitute contempt, in that it was the finding of the Court that the Defendant did not have the ability to comply with the Order (R-309).

On August 31, 1977, the Honorable J. Duffy Palmer rendered Judgment upon an Order to Show Cause on a Petition to Modify made by the Appellant and rendered the Court's Judgment denying same on September 30, 1977 (R-330).

On September 30, 1977, a Motion and Petition for a Rehearing was filed by the Appellant on the matter previously decided on August 31 by the Court. (R-331)

The Court denied the Motion for Rehearing as a matter of law and the Court stated it did not have jurisdiction to enter the Order because of the untimely filing by the Appellant. (R-343)

Upon a subsequent Petition for Rehearing before the Honorable Don Tibbs, the Court denied the Motion of the Appellant, in that a Motion for Redistribution of the Property held before the Honorable Judge Tibbs was an attempt to have the Court overrule and modify the Judgment of another Lower District Court Judge, which the Court denied and dismissed.  
(R-358)

ARGUMENT

POINT I

APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR REHEARING WAS DEFECTIVE AS A MATTER OF LAW.

Under Rule 52(B) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, it specifically provides that the time after the entry of a Judgment, the Court may amend the findings or make additional findings and may amend the Judgment accordingly, and the period provided for such amendment or making of additional findings is set forth as ten (10) days.

Also in accordance with Rule 59(E) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, it places a limitation upon the time for filing Motions such as that of the Appellant's made before the Honorable Don Tibbs to ten days for the filing of an Affidavit and a Motion for a New Trial which shall be calculated from the time the Judgment is entered and requires that the Motion to alter or amend the Judgment shall be served not later than ten days after entry of the Judgment.

The record before the Court shows that the original

matter came on for hearing on August 31, 1977, before the Honorable J. Duffy Palmer, and that the Court entered its findings on August 31, 1977. It is further evidenced that the findings and orders were made in open Court and mailed to Appellant's attorney on September 9, 1977, and were executed by the Court on the 13th day of September, 1977.

(R-337)

The record shows that the Appellant's Affidavit and Motion for a Rehearing were not received by the Respondent's attorney until October 5, 1977, and was not filed by the Court until October 5, 1977. (R-337)

Under Rule 52(B) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provides the ten-day period for amending of the findings or amending of the Judgment, was an Order which was an adjudication of a party's rights and constituted a Judgment as provided for under Rule 52(B) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, and is, therefore, subject to both Rule 52(B) and 59(E). It is, therefore, evident that the Appellant's Motion for Rehearing was properly denied in accordance with the Rules of Civil Procedure of the Court.

## POINT II

ACTIONS OF TRIAL COURT AND JUDGMENT HAVE A PRESUMPTION OF VALIDITY.

The Appellant's invocation of the words of St. Luke

in Chapter 18, verses 1-7, and allegations of the failure of Judges Gould, Christoffersen, Wahlquist, Palmer, Tibbs, and the Supreme Court of Utah, all having failed to pass the test in the granting of equity to a Petitioner, is an interesting philosophical view and the Respondent would adopt the words of St. Luke wherein he stated, "Yet, because this widow troubleth me, I will avenge her, less by her continual coming she weary me", makes even more important that equity shall not be based upon the view of the Lord but rather upon the conscience and desire of men of law, not to render Judgments based on becoming weary from continuously invoked litigation, but based upon the concept of law founded upon a codification of the conduct of individuals in society to abide by the adopted laws and rules of society and not become weary from continued litigation, in that litigiousness itself does not constitute equity.

In Searle v. Searle, 522 P.2d 697 (Sup.Ct. of Ut., May 16, 1974), the Court had before it an action for divorce wherein the parties were given numerous hearings and communications over a period of two years, and the Trial Court attempted to accommodate the parties and provide for an equitable distribution. The Supreme Court held that it is both the duty and the prerogative of the Supreme Court in a case of equity to review the facts as well as the law,

Article VIII, Section 9, Constitution of Utah, the Trial Judge has considerable latitude of discretion in adjusting the financial and property interest in a divorce case, and the actions of a Trial Court are indulged with a presumption of validity with the Appellant having the burden to prove a serious inequity as to the manifest and clear abuse of discretion.

It is submitted to the Court, that the previous Judges who heard the matter before the Court, and specifically the review of the record of Judge Christoffersen by Judge Palmer, was an attempt to give a conscientious and judicious consideration to all of the matters before the Court, and it is submitted that this Court would be hard pressed to find that the Trial Court had abused its broad discretion in arriving at the findings which the Lower Court made in this matter.